
 

 

 

 

 
PWYLLGOR CYNLLUNIO 

 
10.00 AM - DYDD MAWRTH, 12 MEDI 2023 

 
CYFARFOD AML-LEOLIAD - SIAMBR Y CYNGOR, PORT TALBOT A 

MICROSOFT TEAMS 
 

 
RHAID GOSOD POB FFÔN SYMUDOL AR Y MODD DISTAW AR 

GYFER PARHAD Y CYFARFOD 
 

Gweddarlledu/Cyfarfodydd Hybrid:  
Gellir ffilmio’r cyfarfod hwn i’w ddarlledu’n fyw neu’n ddiweddarach drwy 

wefan y cyngor. Drwy gymryd rhan, rydych yn cytuno i gael eich ffilmio ac 
i’r delweddau a’r recordiadau sain hynny gael eu defnyddio at ddibenion 

gweddarlledu a/neu hyfforddiant o bosib 
 

 
 Rhan 1 

 
1.  Cyhoeddiad y Cadeirydd   

 
2.  Datganiadau o fuddiannau   
 
3.  Cofnodion y cyfarfod blaenorol  (Tudalennau 5 - 12) 

 1 Awst 2023 

 22 Awst 2023 
 

4.  Gwneud cais am ymweliad(au) safle gan y ceisiadau a gyflwynwyd   
 

 Adroddiad/au gan Bennaeth Cynllunio a Diogelu'r Cyhoedd 
 

 Adran A - Materion i'w Penderfynu 
 

 Ceisiadau Cynllunio wedi'u hargymell ar gyfer Cymeradwyaeth 
 

AGENDA 



5.  Cais Rhif P2023/0461 - 65 Cwrt Sart  (Tudalennau 13 - 32) 
Newid Defnydd o Annedd Breswyl (C3) i Dŷ Amlfeddiannaeth (C4) 
yn 65 Cwrt Sart, Llansawel SA11 2SR 
 

 Adran B - Materion Er Gwybodaeth 
 

6.  Apeliadau y Penderfynwyd Arnynt - 11/08/2023 i 04/09/2023  
(Tudalennau 33 - 36) 
 

7.  Apeliadau a Dderbyniwyd - 11/08/2023 i 04/09/2023  (Tudalennau 
37 - 38) 

 
8.  Eitemau brys   

Unrhyw eitemau brys yn ôl disgresiwn y Cadeirydd yn unol ag 
Adran 100BA(6)(b) o Ddeddf Llywodraeth Leol 1972 (fel y’i 
diwygiwyd) 
 

 
K.Jones 

Prif Weithredwr 
 

Canolfan Ddinesig 
Port Talbot Dydd Mawrth, 5 Medi 2023 
 
 



 
 
Aelodaeth Pwyllgor:  
 
Cadeirydd: Y Cynghorydd J.Jones 

 
Is-Gadeirydd: 
 

Y Cynghorydd T.Bowen 
 

Aelodau: 
 

Cynghorydd S.Paddison, D.Keogh, R.Davies, 
H.Davies, C.James, C.Jordan, S.Thomas, 
N.Goldup-John, R.Mizen a/ac P.Rogers  
 

Aelod Cabinet: Cynghorydd W.F.Griffiths 
 
Gwneud cais i siarad yng nghyfarfod y Pwyllgor Cynllunio 
 
Mae gan y cyhoedd hawl i fynd i'r cyfarfod ac annerch y pwyllgor yn unol â 
gweithdrefn gytunedig y cyngor sydd ar gael yn www.npt.gov.uk/planning.   
 
Os hoffech siarad yn y Pwyllgor Cynllunio ynghylch cais yr adroddwyd 
amdano i'r pwyllgor hwn, mae'n rhaid i chi: 
 

       Gysylltu â'r Gwasanaethau Democrataidd yn ysgrifenedig, naill ai 
drwy'r post yn: Y Ganolfan Ddinesig, Port Talbot SA13 1PJ, neu'n 
ddelfrydol drwy e-bostio: democratic.services@npt.gov.uk. 

       Sicrhau eich bod yn gwneud eich cais i siarad ddau ddiwrnod gwaith 
cyn dyddiad y cyfarfod fan bellaf (erbyn 2pm ar y dydd Gwener 
blaenorol os yw'r cyfarfod ar ddydd Mawrth).  

       Nodi’n glir rif yr eitem neu'r cais rydych am siarad amdani/o a 
chadarnhewch a ydych yn cefnogi'r cais neu’n ei wrthwynebu. 

       Rhoi eich enw a'ch cyfeiriad (a fydd ar gael i'r cyhoedd oni bai fod 
rhesymau penodol dros gyfrinachedd). 

 
Sylwer, dim ond un person sy’n gallu siarad ar ran pob 'categori' ar gyfer 
pob cais h.y. y gwrthwynebydd, y cefnogwr, yr ymgeisydd/asiant, y 
Cyngor Cymuned/Tref. Ceir manylion llawn yng ngweithdrefn gytunedig y 
cyngor. 
 
Yn ogystal, os yw gwrthwynebydd yn dymuno siarad, hysbysir yr 
ymgeisydd/asiant gan y cyngor. 
 
Os ydych yn dymuno trafod unrhyw agwedd ar siarad cyhoeddus, 
ffoniwch dîm y Gwasanaethau Democrataidd ar 01639 763313. 

http://www.npt.gov.uk/planning
mailto:democratic.services@npt.gov.uk


Cyflwyno sylwadau ar geisiadau cynllunio yr adroddir amdanynt i'r 
pwyllgor 

Os ydych yn dymuno cyflwyno sylwadau ar gais a gyflwynir i'r Pwyllgor 
Cynllunio hwn, sylwer bod rhaid i'r Adran Gynllunio dderbyn y rhain erbyn 
2.00pm ar y dydd Gwener cyn cyfarfod y pwyllgor fan bellaf (yn seiliedig 
ar y cyfarfod dydd Mawrth arferol). Os nad yw'r cyfarfod ar ddydd Mawrth, 
dylid eu derbyn erbyn 2.00pm ar y diwrnod gwaith olaf ond un cyn y 
Pwyllgor Cynllunio fan bellaf.  

Caiff sylwadau a dderbynnir yn unol â phrotocol y cyngor eu crynhoi a, lle 
y bo'n briodol, gwneir sylwadau arnynt ar ffurf Taflen Ddiwygio, a 
ddosberthir i aelodau'r Pwyllgor Cynllunio drwy e-bost ar y noson cyn 
cyfarfod y pwyllgor, a'i chyflwyno ar ffurf copi caled yn y cyfarfod. 

 
 
 



PWYLLGOR CYNLLUNIO 
 

(CYFARFOD AML-LEOLIAD - SIAMBR Y CYNGOR PORT, TALBOT A  
MICROSOFT TEAMS) 

 
Aelodau’n bresennol:  Dydd Mawrth, 1 Awst 2023 
 
 
Cadeirydd: Aelod J.Jones 

 
Is-gadeirydd: Aelod T.Bowen 

 
Cynghorydd: S.Paddison, D.Keogh, C.James, C.Jordan, 

S.Thomas, N.Goldup-John a/ac P.Rogers 
 

Aelod CDU/CDLl: Aelod W.F.Griffiths 
 

Aelodau Lleol: Aelod R.Phillips (Trebanos;) a/ac P.A.Rees 
(Neath South;) 
 

Swyddogion yn 
bresennol: 
 

C.Davies, G.White, R.MacGregor, J.Weeks, 
C.Plowman a/ac C.Hall 
 

Swyddogion yn  
bresennol: 

C.Davies, G.White, R.MacGregor, J.Weeks,  
L.Thomas, M.Griffiths, T.Davies a/ac  
C.Plowman 
 

 

 
1. CYHOEDDIAD Y CADEIRYDD  

 
Croesawodd y Cadeirydd bawb i'r cyfarfod. 

 
2. DATGANIADAU O FUDDIANNAU  

 
Gwnaeth yr aelodau canlynol ddatganiad o fudd: 
 
Y Cyng. C Jordan  Parthed Eitem 6 ar yr Agenda, 

Cais Rhif T2023/02, gan fod y 
preswylydd yn ffrind i'r teulu. 
Penderfynodd y Cyng. mai 
cysylltiad personol oedd hwn, a 
chymerodd ran yn y drafodaeth 
a'r bleidlais wedi hynny.  

Tudalen5

Eitem yr Agenda3



 

Dydd Mawrth, 1 Awst 2023 

Y Cyng. T Bowen.  Parthed Eitem 6 ar yr Agenda, 
Cais Rhif T2023/02, gan fod y 
preswylydd yn ffrind i'r teulu. 
Penderfynodd y Cyng. mai 
budd niweidiol oedd hwn, a 
gadawodd y cyfarfod ar gyfer y 
drafodaeth a'r bleidlais. 

 
3. COFNODION Y CYFARFOD BLAENOROL  

 
Cymeradwywyd cofnodion y cyfarfod a gynhaliwyd ar 27 Ebrill 2023 
fel cofnod cywir. 

 
4. GWNEUD CAIS AM YMWELIAD(AU) SAFLE O’R CEISIADAU A 

GYFLWYNWYD  
 
Ni dderbyniwyd unrhyw geisiadau am ymweliad(au) safle. 

 
5. CAIS RHIF P2023/0240 - 9 HEOL UWCHDIR, PONTARDAWE  

 
Rhoddodd y swyddogion gyflwyniad i'r Pwyllgor Cynllunio am y cais 
hwn (newid defnydd o annedd unigol (dosbarth defnydd C3) i gartref 
gofal preswyl (dosbarth defnydd C4) am hyd at 4 plentyn a'u 
gofalwyr) yng Nghraig y Rhedyn, 9 Heol Uwchdir, Pontardawe SA8 
4AH fel a fanylwyd yn yr adroddiad a ddosbarthwyd.  
 
Roedd yr Aelod Ward Lleol wedi gofyn i’r cais gael ei benderfynu gan 
y Pwyllgor Cynllunio, ac roedd yn bresennol i roi ei sylwadau yn y 
cyfarfod.  
 
PENDERFYNWYD: Cymeradwyo Cais Rhif P2023/0240, yn unol ag 
argymhellion swyddogion, yn amodol ar yr amodau a gynhwyswyd yn 
yr adroddiad a ddosbarthwyd. 

 
6. CAIS RHIF T2023/02 - 111 HEOL CIMLA, CASTELL-NEDD  

 
*Ailddatganodd y Cyng. T Bowen ei fudd a gadawodd y cyfarfod ar 
gyfer yr eitem hon yn unig* 
 
Rhoddodd y swyddogion gyflwyniad i'r Pwyllgor Cynllunio ar y cais 
hwn (cadarnhau T1 Pinwydden Corsica (Pinus Nigra) a T2 
Pinwydden yr Alban(Pinus Sylvestris) yn 111 Heol Cimla, Castell-
nedd SA11 3UE, fel a fanylwyd yn yr adroddiad a ddosbarthwyd. 
 

Tudalen6



 

Dydd Mawrth, 1 Awst 2023 

Roedd yr Aelod Ward Lleol wedi gofyn i’r cais gael ei benderfynu gan 
y Pwyllgor Cynllunio, ac roedd yn bresennol i roi ei sylwadau yn y 
cyfarfod.  
 
PENDERFYNWYD: Cymeradwyo Cais Rhif P2023/02, yn unol ag 
argymhellion swyddogion.  
 
Yn ogystal, byddai'r cyngor  yn ysgrifennu at berchnogion y coed (Tai 
Tarian) ac yn eu gwahodd i wneud cais am waith adfer i liniaru'r elfen 
niwsans o ganlyniad i ganghennau bargodol. 
 

7. APELIADAU A BENDERFYNWYD - 19.04.23 I 24.07.23  
 
Nododd yr Aelodau'r rhestr o Apeliadau a Benderfynwyd o 19 Ebrill i 
24 Gorffennaf 2023.  
 
PENDERFYNWYD: y byddai’r adroddiad yn cael ei nodi. 

 
8. APELIADAU A DDERBYNIWYD - 19.04.23 I 24.07.23  

 
Nododd yr Aelodau'r rhestr o Apeliadau a Dderbyniwyd o 19 Ebrill 
2023 i 24 Gorffennaf 2023.  
 
PENDERFYNWYD y byddai'r adroddiad yn cael ei nodi. 
 

9. PENDERFYNIADAU A DDIRPRWYWYD - 19.04.23 I 24.07.23  
 
Nododd yr aelodau'r rhestr o Benderfyniadau a Ddirprwywyd o 19 
Ebrill 2023 i 24 Gorffennaf 2023.  
 
PENDERFYNWYD y byddai'r adroddiad yn cael ei nodi. 
 

10. EITEMAU BRYS  
 
Ni dderbyniwyd unrhyw eitemau brys. 

 
 
 
 
 

CADEIRYDD 

Tudalen7



Mae’r dudalen hon yn fwriadol wag

Tudalen8



PWYLLGOR CYNLLUNIO 
 

(CYFARFOD AML-LEOLIAD - SIAMBR Y CYNGOR PORT, TALBOT A  
MICROSOFT TEAMS) 

 
Aelodau’n bresennol:  Dydd Mawrth, 22 Awst 2023 
 
 
Cadeirydd: Aelod J.Jones 

 
Is-gadeirydd: Aelod T.Bowen 

 
Cynghorydd: S.Paddison, R.Davies, H.Davies, C.James, 

C.Jordan, S.Thomas, N.Goldup-John, R.Mizen 
a/ac P.Rogers 
 

Swyddogion yn 
bresennol: 
 

C.Morris, D.Thomas, C.Davies, G.Liley a/ac 
C.Plowman 
 

 

 
1. CYHOEDDIAD Y CADEIRYDD  

 
Croesawodd y Cadeirydd bawb i'r cyfarfod. 

 
2. DATGANIADAU O FUDDIANNAU  

 
Ni dderbyniwyd unrhyw ddatganiadau o fuddiannau.  
 

3. GWNEUD CAIS AM YMWELIAD (AU) SAFLE O’R CEISIADAU A 
GYFLWYNWYD  
 
Ni dderbyniwyd unrhyw geisiadau am ymweliad(au) safle. 
 

4. CAIS RHIF P2023/0265 - TIR YN FOUNDRY ROAD  
 
Gwnaeth swyddogion gyflwyniad i'r Pwyllgor Cynllunio am y cais hwn 
(Adeiladu 15 o unedau diwydiannol/masnachol ysgafn (Defnydd 
Dosbarth B2/B8) â lleoedd parcio, ardal wasanaethu, tirlunio caled a 
meddal a gwaith draenio cysylltiedig ar dir i'r gogledd o Old Foundry 
Road, Pontardawe, fel y manylir yn yr adroddiad a ddosbarthwyd.  
 

Tudalen9



 

Dydd Mawrth, 22 Awst 2023 

PENDERFYNWYD: Cymeradwyo Cais Rhif P2023/0265, yn unol ag 
argymhellion swyddogion, yn amodol ar yr amodau a gynhwyswyd yn 
yr adroddiad a ddosbarthwyd. 

 
5. CAIS RHIF P2023/0480 - 6 CARDONNEL ROAD  

 
Gwnaeth swyddogion gyflwyniad i'r Pwyllgor Cynllunio am y cais hwn 
(ardal ddec uwch arfaethedig y tu ôl i'r eiddo, gyda sgrîn breifatrwydd 
gysylltiedig) yn 6 Cardonnel Road, Sgiwen, Castell-nedd, Castell-
nedd Port Talbot SA10 6DE, fel y manylir yn yr adroddiad a 
ddosbarthwyd.  
 
PENDERFYNWYD: Cymeradwyo Cais Rhif P2023/0480, yn unol ag 
argymhellion Swyddogion, yn amodol ar yr amodau a gynhwyswyd yn 
yr adroddiad a ddosbarthwyd. 

 
6. CYFLWYNIAD AR GEISIADAU  

 
Derbyniodd aelodau gyflwyniad am y ceisiadau a gynhwysir yn yr 
agenda ar gyfer y cyfarfod hwn (wedi'i nodi fel cofnod rhif 4 a 5).  
 

7. APELIADAU Y PENDERFYNWYD ARNYNT - 24/07/2023 TAN 
11/08/2023  
 
Nododd yr Aelodau'r rhestr o Apeliadau y Penderfynwyd arnynt o 24 
Gorffennaf 2023 i 11 Awst 2023. 
 
PENDERFYNWYD y byddai'r adroddiad yn cael ei nodi. 
 

8. APELIADAU A DDERBYNIWYD - 24/07/2023 TAN 11/08/2023  
 
Nododd yr Aelodau'r rhestr o Apeliadau a Dderbyniwyd o 24 
Gorffennaf 2023 i 11 Hydref 2023. 
 
PENDERFYNWYD y byddai'r adroddiad yn cael ei nodi. 
 

9. PENDERFYNIADAU DIRPRWYEDIG - 24/07/2023 TAN 11/08/2023  
 
Nododd yr Aelodau'r rhestr o Benderfyniadau Dirprwyedig o 24 
Gorffennaf i 11 Awst 2023. 
 
PENDERFYNWYD y byddai'r adroddiad yn cael ei nodi. 
 

10. EITEMAU BRYS  

Tudalen10



 

Dydd Mawrth, 22 Awst 2023 

 
Ni dderbyniwyd unrhyw eitemau brys. 

 
 
 
 
 

CADEIRYDD 

Tudalen11



Mae’r dudalen hon yn fwriadol wag

Tudalen12



 

 

 
SECTION A – MATTERS FOR DECISION 
 
Planning Applications Recommended For Approval. 

 

APPLICATION NO: P2023/0461 DATE: 19th June 2023 

PROPOSAL: Change of Use from Residential (C3) to House of Multiple 
Occupancy (C4).  

LOCATION: 65, Cwrt Sart, Britton Ferry, SA11 2SR 

APPLICANT: Mr Paul Bosomorth 

TYPE: FULL 

WARD: Britton Ferry 

 
BACKGROUND 

 
This application is reported to Planning Committee as Cllr Chris James requested on 
30/08/2023 that this application be determined at Planning Committee due to the 
issues around parking and highway safety raised by local residents.  
 
 
 
SITE AND CONTEXT 
 
The application site is 65 Cwrt Sart, Britton Ferry which comprises of a three 
bedroom, two storey terrace property, with a single storey lean to located at the rear 
of the property.  
 
The property has a rear garden which is split level, with no off-street parking. 
  
The application site is located within settlement limits, and is part of a row of terrace 
properties with an access lane to the rear and residential properties to the west, 
along Short Street. The application property is located along the Britton Ferry Active 
Travel route along the A474 and is 30m from the closest bus stop.  
 
DESCRIPTION OF DEVELOPMENT 
 
The application proposes a change of use of the dwelling (Use Class C3) to a 6 no 
person/bed House of Multiple Occupancy (Use Class C4) 
 
The proposal would incorporate 2no bedrooms at ground floor, with a kitchen, dining 
area and bathroom and 4no bedrooms at first floor with 2no bathrooms.  
 
No external alterations are proposed to the property itself, with works required 
internally to facilitate the conversion (including the creation of bathrooms and 
alterations to walls). The application also includes the removal of the rear boundary 
wall and the creation of 1no parking space (accessed off the rear lane). The existing 
lean to at the rear of the site would be utilised for bin storage and cycle parking.  
 
NEGOTIATIONS 
 

Tudalen13

Eitem yr Agenda5



 

 

Following highway comments and Environmental Health comments a parking space 
was added to the rear of the site and internal alterations to the proposal undertaken.  
 
PLANNING HISTORY 
 
The application site has no relevant planning history. 
 
 
CONSULTATIONS 
 
Ward members were notified.  
 
Community Council– concerns of highway safety implications regarding parking. The 
applicant states parking is not relevant, the Town Council is of the view that it is 
relevant especially in respect of the A474 and the congestion caused in the adjacent 
side streets.  
 
Head of Engineering and Transport, Highway Section-– No objection subject to 
condition.  
 
Environmental Health (Housing)– An additional bathroom / WC required for the 
proposal or a reduction of one bedroom. Following the submission of amended plans 
an additional WC has been included at ground flood and a no objection response 
has been received.  
 
Environmental Health (Noise) were consulted – request for condition relating to 
demolition and construction hours.  
 
NRW– No Comments.  
 
REPRESENTATIONS 
 
The neighbouring properties were consulted on 14/07/23 and 23/06/23 and a site 
notice was also displayed on 17/07/23 and 22/06/23.  
 
In response, to date 15no. representations by 7no. contributors have been received, 
with the issues raised summarised as follows: - 
 

 Concerns with loss over privacy and overlooking from application site  

 Safety concerns with parking streets away and having to walk home in the 
dark.  

 CCTV fitted outside property to monitor vehicles, would be redundant if 
unable to park outside property.  

 Impact on unloading shopping and getting young children into house.  

 Cause tension with 6 extra cars.  

 No resident parking at present.  

 Traffic generation in the area  

 Concerns with parking capacity on street.  

 Concerns with noise and disturbance with increased comings and goings with 
6 individuals.  

 Concerns with effect on street and area, currently a safe family orientated 
area.  

Tudalen14



 

 

 Change of residential use does not fit into the area, will cause a shift in feeling 
and worry too many families and be a detriment to the local children.  

 Concerns with increase in antisocial behaviour.  

 Concerns with personal circumstances if approved it is being insisted to move 
from area.  

 Planning application at no.81 was blocked and Treetops BandB.  

 Concerns with value of houses.  

 Concerns with affordable housing and occupancy turnover.  

 Living in fear of children’s safety.  

 Owner doesn’t live in the area.  

 Cycle shed at rear a good idea however busy main road, with safety concerns 
and no dedicated cycle path.  

 Local bus routes reduced further exacerbates local transport issues. 

 Letters from South Wales Police warning against parking on pavements and 
junctions.  

 Main school route 

 Been a number of HMO applications challenged by residents 

 Car port to be built to back of house  

 Car cannot fit into the lane with space between garden and neighbours house 
less than 3m.  

 Proposed parking space would be virtually unusable due to difficulty in 
accessing and exiting.  

 Will lead to breakdown in social and community cohesion.  

 Swansea University is closest higher education where ample accommodation 
is provided.  

 Already significant problem with crime for small area with 35 incidents in year 
up to May 2023.  

 While it might meet guidelines, with 6 occupants, it will feel cramped and 
restrictive.  

 Moved from previous area of HMOs.    

 Obligated to recycle and lane behind houses have constant fly tipping issues 
and proposal is likely to increase problem leading to rats, insects and 
infestation. 

 
REPORT 
 
The Well-being of Future Generations Act (Wales) 2015 places a duty on the Council 
to take reasonable steps in exercising its functions to meet its sustainable 
development (or wellbeing) objectives. This report has been prepared in 
consideration of the Council’s duty and the “sustainable development principle”, as 
set out in the 2015 Act. In reaching the recommendation set out below, the Council 
has sought to ensure that the needs of the present are met without compromising 
the ability of future generations to meet their own needs. 
 
National Planning Policy: 
 
Future Wales: The National Plan 2040 is the national development framework, 
setting the direction for development in Wales to 2040. The development plan sets 
out a strategy for addressing key national priorities through the planning system, 
including sustaining and developing a vibrant economy, achieving decarbonisation 

Tudalen15

mailto:https://gov.wales/future-wales-national-plan-2040


 

 

and climate resilience, developing strong ecosystems and improving the health and 
wellbeing of our communities. 
 
The following policies are of particular relevance to the assessment of this 
application: 
 
Policy 2 – Shaping Urban Growth and Regeneration – Strategic Placemaking  
Policy 8 – Flooding  
 
 
Welsh National Marine Plan   
 
https://gov.wales/sites/default/files/publications/2019-11/welsh-national-marine-plan-
document_0.pdf 
 
This Plan extends up to the level of mean high water spring tides and the waters of 
every estuary, river or channel, so far as the tide flows at mean high water spring 
tide. In comparison, land-use planning boundaries generally extend to mean low 
water spring tides. This Plan therefore overlaps physically with terrestrial plans, 
helping to facilitate integration between land and sea planning and management. 
 
 
Vision and objectives  
The vision for the Welsh inshore and offshore marine plan regions is: Welsh seas 
are clean, healthy, safe, productive and biologically diverse:  
 
• Through an ecosystem approach, natural resources are sustainably managed and 
our seas are healthy and resilient, supporting a sustainable and thriving economy;  
 
• Through access to, understanding of and enjoyment of the marine environment and 
maritime cultural heritage, health and well-being are improving;  
 
• Through Blue Growth more jobs and wealth are being created and are helping 
coastal communities become more resilient, prosperous and equitable with a vibrant 
culture; and  
 
• Through the responsible deployment of low carbon technologies, the Welsh marine 
area is making a strong contribution to energy security and climate change 
emissions targets. 
 
• Band One activities are low risk and little or no additional evidence is likely to be 
required to demonstrate compliance with this Plan.  
 
• Band Two activities are medium risk. Some evidence is likely to be required to 
demonstrate compliance with this Plan. The level of evidence required will be based 
upon the level of risk associated with the project.  
 
• Band Three activities are higher risk, including projects that require formal project 
assessment processes. A greater level of evidence is likely to be required to 
demonstrate compliance with this Plan. Proposals falling into Bands Two and Three 
should include a clear supporting statement on which plan policies are relevant, the 

Tudalen16

https://gov.wales/sites/default/files/publications/2019-11/welsh-national-marine-plan-document_0.pdf
https://gov.wales/sites/default/files/publications/2019-11/welsh-national-marine-plan-document_0.pdf


 

 

extent to which the proposal complies with the policies and how the proposal 
contributes to the Plan vision and objectives. 
 
 
Planning Policy Wales (Edition 11, February 2021) outlines the Welsh 
Government's commitment to the importance of 'places' and 'place-making', the 
importance of using previously developed land wherever possible in preference to 
greenfield sites, and the recognition of the health and wellbeing related benefits by 
creating a sense of place and improving social cohesion. PPW 11 confirms that the 
environmental components of places are intrinsically linked to the quality of the built 
and natural environment and contribute to the health and wellbeing of the people 
who live, work and play there. It emphasises the importance of creating sustainable 
communities and reducing reliance on the private car as part of a package of 
measures to reduce the country's carbon footprint and help tackle the climate 
emergency. 
 
 
PPW 11 is supported by a series of more detailed Technical Advice Notes (TANs), of 
which the following are of relevance: - 
 

 Technical Advice Note (TAN) 11: Noise (1997) 

 Technical Advice Note (TAN) 12: Design (2016) 

 Technical Advice Note (TAN) 18: Transport (2007) 
 

 
 

Local Planning Policies 
 
The Local Development Plan for the area comprises the Neath Port Talbot Local 
Development Plan which was adopted in January 2016, and within which the 
following policies are of relevance: 
 
Strategic Policies :  
 

 Policy SP1  Climate Change 

 Policy SP2  Health  

 Policy SP3  Sustainable communities 

 Policy SP5  Development in the Coastal Corridor Strategy Area 

 Policy SP7 Housing Requirement 

 Policy SP15 Biodiversity and Geodiversity 

 Policy SP20 Transport Network 

 Policy SP21  Built Environment and Historic Heritage 
 

Topic Based Policies :  

 Policy SC1 Settlement limits 

 Policy TR2  Design and Access of New Development  

 Policy BE1  Design  
 

Tudalen17

mailto:https://gov.wales/sites/default/files/publications/2021-02/planning-policy-wales-edition-11_0.pdf
https://gov.wales/technical-advice-notes
https://www.npt.gov.uk/7328
https://www.npt.gov.uk/7328
https://www.npt.gov.uk/PDF/ldp_written_statement_jan16.pdf#PAGE=35
https://www.npt.gov.uk/PDF/ldp_written_statement_jan16.pdf#PAGE=35
https://www.npt.gov.uk/PDF/ldp_written_statement_jan16.pdf#PAGE=37
https://www.npt.gov.uk/PDF/ldp_written_statement_jan16.pdf#PAGE=45
file://///decs-fs1/decsgroup/Planning%20Management/Steve/OFFICER%20REPORTS%20PROJECT/Policy%20SP7%09Housing%20Requirement%09https:/www.npt.gov.uk/PDF/ldp_written_statement_jan16.pdf%23PAGE=53
https://www.npt.gov.uk/PDF/ldp_written_statement_jan16.pdf#PAGE=72
https://www.npt.gov.uk/PDF/ldp_written_statement_jan16.pdf#PAGE=83
https://www.npt.gov.uk/PDF/ldp_written_statement_jan16.pdf#PAGE=87
https://www.npt.gov.uk/PDF/ldp_written_statement_jan16.pdf#PAGE=38
https://www.npt.gov.uk/PDF/ldp_written_statement_jan16.pdf#PAGE=84
https://www.npt.gov.uk/PDF/ldp_written_statement_jan16.pdf#PAGE=87


 

 

Supplementary Planning Guidance:  
 
The following SPG is of relevance to this application: - 
 

 Parking Standards (October 2016) 

 Design (July 2017) 

 Biodiversity and Geodiversity (May 2018) 
 
 
Issues 
 
Having regard to the above, the main issues to consider in this application relate to 
the principle of development, together with the impact on the visual amenity of the 
area, the amenities of neighbouring residents, highway and pedestrian safety. 
 
Principle of Development 
 
Background Information 
As background, it is of note that in February 2016 the Welsh Government introduced 
changes to the Town and Country Planning (Use Classes) Order to create a new use 
class for Houses in Multiple Occupation (HMO) (Class C4). The Use Class C4 in 
broad terms covers shared houses or flats occupied by between three and six 
unrelated individuals who share basic amenities, such as the proposals set out within 
this submission. 
 
The change to the Use Classes Order therefore served to bring the change of use of 
dwellings (which fall in Class C3) to HMO’s within the control of Planning Authorities 
by making such changes subject to planning permission. The reason for the change 
in the Use Class Order followed a recognition that, in some parts of the Country, the 
number of HMOs within an area was having an adverse impact upon the character of 
an area. 
 
It should be noted that large houses in multiple occupation (those with more than six 
people sharing) remain unclassified by the Use Classes Order and in planning terms 
are therefore considered to be ‘sui generis’. 
 
Having regard to the above, it is acknowledged that concentrations of HMOs can, in 
some instances, lead to a range of cultural, social and economic changes in a 
community and that high concentrations have the potential to create local issues. 
The Council does not, however, have any specific local Policies aimed at preventing 
the spread of HMOs at present. This is due largely to the absence of any significant 
historical issue in the area, and the introduction of the C4 Use Class post adoption of 
the LDP. 
 
Evolving National Policy Context 
(Edition 11) was revised and restructured in February 2021 to coincide with 
publication of, and take into account the policies, themes and approaches set out in, 
Future Wales - the National Plan 2040 and to deliver the vision for Wales that is set 
out therein. This includes a significant emphasis on placemaking and the creation of 
sustainable places and their role in improving the wellbeing of communities.  
Indeed, PPW11 emphasises that one of the “Key Planning Principles” is “Creating & 
sustaining communities”, noting that: 

Tudalen18

https://www.npt.gov.uk/PDF/spg_parking_standards_oct16.pdf
https://www.npt.gov.uk/media/7237/spg_design_july17.pdf
https://www.npt.gov.uk/media/9003/spg_biodiversity_geodiversity_may18.pdf
https://gov.wales/sites/default/files/publications/2021-02/future-wales-the-national-plan-2040.pdf


 

 

 
“The planning system must work in an integrated way to maximise its contribution to 
well-being. It can achieve this by creating well-designed places and cohesive rural 
and urban communities which can be sustained by ensuring the appropriate balance 
of uses and density, making places where people want to be and interact with 
others. Our communities need the right mix of good quality/well designed homes, 
jobs, services, infrastructure and facilities so that people feel content with their 
everyday lives.” 
 
It goes further to add that Social Considerations (paragraph 2.28) include: 

 who are the interested and affected people and communities;  

 how does the proposal change a person’s way of life, which can include:  
o how people live, for example how they get around and access services;  
o how people work, for example access to adequate employment;  
o how people socialise, for example access to recreation activities; and  
o how people interact with one another on a daily basis  

 who will benefit and suffer any impacts from the proposal;  

 what are the short and long-term consequences of the proposal on a community, 
including its composition, cohesion, character, how it functions and its sense of 
place; and 

 how does the proposal support development of more equal and more cohesive 
communities.  

 
When referring to housing (at 4.2.1), PPW 11 also emphasises the need for Councils 
to “make informed development management decisions that focus on the creation 
and enhancement of Sustainable Places”. In this regard, it is considered that 
Planning has an important role in ensuring not only that new development creates 
places, and communities, but also that existing communities are protected and 
enhanced, and that cohesive communities are retained.  
 
Evolving Local Context 
Although it is emphasised that it is not directly relevant to this Authority or its 
decisions, it is also of note that the City & County of Swansea (CCS) adopted its 
LDP in February 2019, which now includes a HMO Policy, accepted by the LDP 
Inspectors, and based on local background evidence, notably a report by an 
independent company called Lichfields. 
 
That background evidence report, while focussing on CCS, is nevertheless of 
relevance insofar as it identifies the wider national context.   
 
That report notes that: - 
 

 HMOs represent an efficient use of building resources, where a single house can 
be fully utilised to provide accommodation for multiple people. 

 Notwithstanding their positive contributions and important socio-economic role, 
areas with high densities of HMOs can also be characterised by problems with 
community cohesion, higher levels of noise and waste complaints, and place a 
strain on services. 

 The positive impacts of HMOs are realised and, with rising pressures from the 
increased number of students, the need for affordable and flexible housing 
tenancies, and the changes to Housing Benefit, their role within the housing 
market is increasingly important. 

Tudalen19



 

 

 
The analysis undertaken by Lichfields identified a correlation between areas with 
high densities of HMOs and community cohesion issues. These negative impacts 
were summarised as: 
 

1. Higher levels of transient residents, fewer long term households and 
established families, leading to communities which are not balanced; 

 
2. Isolation for the remaining family households in areas with very high 

concentrations of HMOs; 
 
3. Reduction in provision of community facilities for families and children, 

in particular pressure on the viability of schools through falling rolls; 
 
4. Issues of anti-social behaviour, noise, burglary and other crime; 
 
5. Increased pressure regarding on-street parking, although this might be 

expected in City Centre fringe locations; 
 
6. Reduction in the quality of the local environment and street scene as a 

consequence of increased litter, lack of suitable refuse storage, refuse 
left on the street, fly tipping, increased levels of housing disrepair in the 
private rented sector, and high numbers of letting signs. 

 
As a consequence of this research, CCS now has an adopted HMO Policy in their 
LDP. However, the complexity of assessing whether any proposed change of use 
has a harmful impact on local character or community cohesion is demonstrated by 
the varying criterion in their Policy, which includes a requirement (outside of their 
HMO Management areas – these being existing areas of high HMO concentration) 
for any proposal not to result in more than 10% of all residential properties within a 
50m radius of the proposal being HMOs, and within ‘small streets’ for a proposal to 
not “create a disproportionate over-concentration of HMOs within that street”. In 
addition to specifying % rates within designated areas, the policy also requires an 
assessment of whether the development would have an unacceptable adverse 
impact caused by noise nuisance and general disturbance.  
 
The supporting text to their Policy is also relevant to a wider understanding of the 
issue, insofar as it emphasises that there is a need for future HMO provision to be 
managed sustainably in the interests of fostering cohesive communities, including 
avoiding instances of over-concentration of HMO properties to the detriment of 
residential amenity and community balance. These objectives are equally pertinent 
to consideration of this application. 
 
It also emphasises that “National research has identified that 10% is a general 
‘tipping point’ beyond which the evidence indicates that a concentration of HMOs can 
begin to have an adverse impact on the character and balance of a community. This 
tipping point is described as a threshold beyond which a community can ‘tip’ from a 
balanced position in terms of demographic norms and impacts, towards a 
demographic that is noticeably more mixed in terms of shared and family 
households.  
 
Assessment of Current Application 

Tudalen20



 

 

While it is again emphasised that the CCS Policy context described above is not 
directly relevant to this assessment, the approach itself is considered to have merit 
insofar as it is an evidence-based approach that provides a robust rationale for 
applying a 10% threshold for all areas outside their HMO Management Area. This 
does not mean, however, that anything over 10% is unacceptable or harmful as a 
matter of principle - given the need to still demonstrate the harm of such 
concentrations and the absence of a policy within NPT.  
 
In the absence of a specific HMO Policy, this application has to be determined in line 
with current LDP Policies. In this respect, it is emphasised that the application site is 
located within the settlement limits defined by Policy SC1 of the LDP and therefore 
the principle of residential development (albeit a C4 HMO use, rather than a Class 
C3 dwellinghouse) would be acceptable subject to an assessment of its general 
impacts. This includes consideration of any potential wider impacts on local 
character and social / community cohesion created by HMO uses, as well as other 
amenity / highway issues. It is also notable that the existing residential 
accommodation is a 3-bedroom house split over two floors. 
 
The wider assessment of the principle, however, should have regard to the Local 
and National context described earlier, and it is especially notable that there is a 
need for this Authority to ensure that the years where there is a ‘policy vacuum’ 
between the adoption of our current LDP (in January 2016) and conclusion of the 
review (commencing 2020 and adoption in 2024) is not taken advantage of by 
developers to the extent that applications are progressed incrementally to the point 
where the character and cohesion of the local area could be irreparably harmed. 
 
Within this context and based on the information accessible to the Council, there are 
10 properties within this terrace block within which the application is location, and 
records indicate that one of the properties are currently registered as an HMO.  
 
It should be noted that SPGs adopted in other authorities including that within 
Swansea have referred to a 50m buffer zone being drawn around the application site 
and a requirement for consideration of the number of HMOs within that zone.  
 
In this case there would only be 2no. known HMOs within the zone (Numbers 65 and 
75). It is noted that there is another HMO at 25 Cwrt Sart approximately 134m to the 
north of the application site. Should this application be approved, it would result in 
approximately 13.3% of the properties being HMOs (2 out of the 15) within the 50m 
radius, as illustrated on the map below.  
 

Tudalen21



 

 

 
 
Having regard to the guidance in PPW (4.2.1), which emphasises the need for 
Councils to “make informed development management decisions that focus on the 
creation and enhancement of Sustainable Places”, it is considered that Planning has 
an important role in ensuring not only that new development creates places, and 
communities, but also that existing communities are protected and enhanced, and 
that cohesive communities are retained.   
 

Tudalen22



 

 

In this respect, while it is noted that there is often concern in the local community 
about the potential impact of HMOs on local character and social cohesion, there are 
no known HMO issues in this particular area of Britton Ferry East that would raise 
significant concern to warrant a refusal in this case. As such, even in the absence of 
a specific HMO Policy within the LDP, there are no grounds to refuse this application 
relating to the impact on local character or community cohesion. It is considered that 
the principle of the conversion is acceptable on Policy grounds. Moreover, within a 
wider context with residential properties opposite, it would be difficult to sustain an 
argument that there was an over-concentration of such Class C4 uses in this 
immediate area and there are no overriding considerations that would outweigh this 
recommendation. 
 
Although the applications supporting information identifies a maximum of 6 people, 
given the number of bedrooms proposed as part of the application (6no. bedrooms) 
a condition will be attached to the decision notice to ensure that the properties is 
occupied by a maximum of 6no. people to ensure that the proposed C4 use is 
conformed too.  
 
 
Impact on Visual Amenity 
 
It is noted that no external alterations are proposed to the property itself with the 
formation of 1no. parking space to the rear of the site and the bin and cycle store 
would be located within the existing lean to at the rear of the property. As such it is 
considered that the proposal would retain a residential appearance and the overall 
proposal would not unacceptably detriment to character and appearance of the 
surrounding area or street-scene. 
 
The removal of the rear boundary wall and the creation of a parking space does not 
require planning permission. The creation of the parking space is considered to be a 
minor alteration to the rear of the side, located on the existing garden level.  
 
With regard to a sprinkler system the agent has confirmed by email that this would 
be considered at a later date with the submission of a new application if necessary.  
 
As such the proposed change of use is considered to comply with Policy BE1 of the 
LDP.  
 
 
Impact on Residential Amenity 

 
In respect of potential overlooking, it is noted no new windows are proposed. Whilst 
there is one first floor side elevation windows on the property it already serves a 
bathroom and will continue to serve a bathroom. The existing rear elevation windows 
would also remain and would continue to serve bedrooms and would not have new 
or different views than those which currently existing. As such, it is considered that 
the proposed change of use would not create any additional or unacceptable 
overlooking over and above that currently experienced. In order to ensure that no 
additional overlooking issues are created ‘permitted development’ rights for windows, 
doors and dormers can be removed from the property by way of a suitably worded 
condition. 
 

Tudalen23



 

 

With regard to potential overbearing and overshadowing, it should be noted that no 
extensions or alterations are proposed externally to the property. As such, the 
proposal would not create any unacceptable issues in these regards.   
 
In respect of potential noise and disturbance, whilst it is acknowledged that the use 
of the property will be for a 6no. bedroom HMO, the Environmental Health 
Department has assessed the submitted scheme and following the provision of 
another bathroom at ground floor, advises that they are satisfied that the room sizes 
and amenities provided are sufficient for the proposed use as a 6 person C4 Use 
Class HMO, and would have no objection to the principle of this change of use 
following the submission of the amended plan showing an additional bathroom at 
ground floor. Additionally, it was requested that a condition be attached relating to 
demolition and construction hours. As no demolition is proposed a condition will be 
attached relating to construction for the internal works proposed.  
 
It is noted that the proposed layout would introduce two bedrooms are ground floor 
however this is not considered to result in an unacceptable level of noise and 
disturbance to the adjoining neighbours.  
 
Provided that the requested condition limiting occupation to a maximum of 6 
occupants is imposed on the application, it is therefore considered that the noise and 
disturbance associated with the comings and goings to and from the property are 
unlikely to be different when compared to the existing use of that of a family property. 
Accordingly, it is considered that the proposed HMO would not lead to unacceptable 
levels of noise, disturbance or nuisance that would be uncharacteristic of a dwelling 
of this size and would not warrant refusal of this application. 
 
In light of the above, it is considered that there are no justifiable grounds to refuse 
planning permission on residential amenity grounds, having particular regard to the 
fact that if any such issues arise in the future, these can be addressed by the 
Environmental Health Department under their statutory nuisance powers. 

 
 
Parking and Access Requirements and Impact on Highway Safety 
 
Policy TR2 of the Local Development Plan states that permission will be granted for 
development that is acceptable in terms of access, parking and highway safety. The 
policy also requires that sufficient parking and cycle provision is provided and that 
the development is accessible by a range of travel means. 
 
It is noted that the existing property is located off the A474 which is the main route 
through Briton Ferry into Neath. The A474 is a busy main road with intermittent 
parking restrictions however it is noted that there are no parking restrictions on this 
section of Cwrt Sart, Short Street to the North of the site or Tucker Street to the 
South.  
 
It is noted that concerns have been raised by the provision of parking within the 
locality, which has subsequently resulted in the application being called to Planning 
Committee for determination.  
 
Members may be aware that there is to be a review of the Authority’s Parking Policy 
and this will include consideration of how HMO’s and other types of residential uses 

Tudalen24



 

 

will be considered when issuing resident only parking permits. This review will 
include input from other sections of the Authority, including planning and Highways.  
 
In relation to the existing situation, an existing residential property would have a 
parking requirement, as detailed in the Parking Standards SPG, for 1 space per 
bedroom up to a maximum of 3 spaces. However, at present, there is no off-street 
car parking available at the site. 
 

In respect of the proposed use, it is noted that as a ‘residential use’ (albeit C4 not 
C3) this would require 1 space per bedroom (up to a maximum of 3). The total for the 

proposed use would therefore be 3 spaces. It is noted that 1 space is proposed to 

be created within the rear area (in a space approximately 4.8m x 2.4m, with space to 
the sides of the space. The parking space would also be set in from the rear 
boundary of the site by 3.4m and 6m from the back of the access lane. This space 
would be sufficient to allow 1 car to be parked, as well as manoeuvre into and from 
the rear lane access. This means that whilst there would be a technical deficiency of 
2 spaces, there would be a ‘betterment’ over the current situation and current lawful 
use. 
 
The Head of Engineering and Transport (Highways Section) has assessed the 

proposal and offers no objection to the development, subject to conditions. 
 
On the basis that there is no current HMO classification within the approved 

Supplementary Planning Guidance: Parking Standards (October 2016). The 

application submission has been therefore assessed against the closest Use Class 

of C3 (Residential). This would require a maximum provision of 3 parking spaces for 
the proposed change of use. It should also be noted that ‘Permitted Development’ 
Rights for extensions can be removed from the property in order to protect the car 
parking and bin-storage area to the rear yard. 
 
While concerns have been raised with regard to the parking ability to the rear of site, 
the highway officers response confirms that the proposal would meet the required 
area to access and egress the site.  
 
Notwithstanding the parking provision on site, the application site is located within 
30m of a bus stop, with 5 bus stops located within 300m. Britton Ferry train station is 
also located within 460m of the application site with the closest shop 285m to the 
north the application site is considered to be sustainably located with proximity to 
public transport links. It is noted that concerns have been raised regarding the 
reduction of local bus routes however Cwrt Sart is a main bus route with services still 
running.  
 
Although concerns have been raised regarding the location of the site on a busy 
main road with no dedicated cycle paths, active travel is promoted in urban 
residential areas. Cycle parking would be provided on site within the existing lean-to 
and can be secured by a suitably worded condition.  
 
Given the existing use and the lack of parking provision on site, together with the 
sustainable location of the site (i.e. near shops and facilities and on a bus route), it is 
considered that the overall proposal would be acceptable in terms of highway and 
pedestrian safety, and refusal of the application on highway/parking grounds could 

Tudalen25



 

 

not be substantiated at appeal. 
 
 
Biodiversity / Ecology 
 
As identified above, Policies EN6 and EN7 of the Local Development Plan will be of 
relevance insofar as there is a need to ensure any impacts on biodiversity/ natural 
features are appropriately assessed and, where applicable, mitigated.   
 
Planning Policy Wales (PPW) 11 sets out that “planning authorities must seek to 
maintain and enhance biodiversity in the exercise of their functions. This means that 
development should not cause any significant loss of habitats or populations of 
species, locally or nationally and must provide a net benefit for biodiversity”. This 
policy and subsequent policies in Chapter 6 of PPW 11 respond to the Section 6 
Duty of the Environment (Wales) Act 2016. 
 
It is noted that no biodiversity enhancement has been proposed as part of the 
application however given the scale of the proposal, it is considered reasonable that 
enhancement measures can be secured by a suitably worded condition.  
 
 
Flood risk  
 
Part of the garden is located within the new Flood Maps for Planning Flood Zone 2 
however the property is located outside of any flood zone and as such is not 
considered to be at risk to flooding.  
 
Other Matters 
 
As identified earlier in this report, a number of objections were received in response 
following the publicity consultation. In response to the main issues raised which have 
not been addressed elsewhere in this report, the following comments are made: 
 

 Concerns were raised with regard to safety when having to park streets away 
and having to walk home in the dark, however this is not a material planning 
consideration as parking on the highway cannot be controlled.  

 Concerns were raised noting that CCTV fitted outside property to monitor 
vehicles would be redundant if unable to park outside property however this is 
not a material planning consideration.  

 Concerns raised with regard to unloading shopping and getting young children 
into house, however this is not a material planning consideration.  

 Concerns with increase in antisocial behaviour and would lead to breakdown 
in social and community cohesion however as assessed above given the 
density of HMOs within the locality, the proposal isn’t considered to 
unacceptably detriment the character of the area.  

 With regard to concerns of personal circumstances if approved it is being 
insisted to move from area, the application can only consider the planning 
merits of the application and the application proposes a residential use within 
a residential area.  

 In respect of the concerns if the proposals impact on property values, it should 
be noted that this is not a material planning consideration, so cannot be taken 

Tudalen26



 

 

into account when determining this application. The proposed use would be 
residential in nature within a predominantly residential area.   

 Concerns regarding affordable housing and occupancy turnover, however the 
planning system controls the use of the land not the type of future occupant. 
As a result, the planning application process cannot dictate the type of 
resident who will potentially occupy this property and as such associated 
concerns cannot be considered as part of this application. Concerns were 
also raised that the owner doesn’t live in the area, however this is not a 
material planning matter.  

 Letters received by residents from South Wales Police warning against 
parking on pavements and junctions, however illegal parking is not a planning 
matter.  

 Representation received note that a number of HMO applications have been 
challenged by residents and have moved from previous area of HMOs. While 
consideration is given to other applications in the area, each planning 
application is determined on their own merits.   

 Representation noted the inclusion of a car port to be built to back of house 
however the proposal would only include a parking space with no building 
constructed.   

 Swansea University is closest higher education where ample accommodation 
is provided and while HMOs can be used to provide student accommodation it 
is not their sole use. 

 Concerns have been raised in regard to crime rates in the area, with fear of 
children’s safety and the impact upon the safe family orientated area. With 
regard to the above considerations the proposed change of use of the 
property is not considered to detriment the overall safety of the area to a 
degree that would warrant a refusal on the application.  

 Concerns with affordable housing and occupancy turnover, however the 
occupancy of the property is not a material planning consideration.  

 Concerns raised stating that the change of residential use does not fit into the 
area, will cause a shift in feeling and worry too many families and be a 
detriment to the local children. As a result, the planning application process 
cannot dictate the type of resident who will potentially occupy this property 
and as such associated concerns cannot be considered as part of this 
application. 

 In regards to the concerns of overlooking and loss of privacy, these have 
been addressed in the report above. 

 In relation to the comments concerning fly-tipping and pests, it should be 
noted that bin storage will be provided on site with the existing lean-to 
building, and it would be for the landlord/developer to agree the most 
appropriate bin storage details and provision with the Waste/Refuse Section 
of the Authority (i.e. 1 large communal bin or separate smaller bins). It should 
also be noted that if there are any issues with waste storage or distribution 
then the Waste Enforcement Section and/or Environmental Health Section 
have powers to enforce against the landlord, as the responsibility lies with 
them. 

 
CONCLUSION 
 
The decision to recommend planning permission has been taken in accordance with 
Section 38 of The Planning and Compulsory Purchase Act 2004, which requires that, 
in determining a planning application the determination must be in accordance with 

Tudalen27



 

 

the Development Plan unless material considerations indicate otherwise. The 
Development Plan comprises Future Wales - the National Plan 2040 and the Neath 
Port Talbot Local Development Plan (2011–2026) adopted January 2016. 
 
It is considered that the proposed development would not have a detrimental impact 
upon residential amenity or upon the character and appearance of the surrounding 
area, and there would be no unacceptable impact upon highway and pedestrian 
safety. Hence, the proposed development would be in accordance with Policies SC1, 
TR2 and BE1 of the Neath Port Talbot Local Development Plan.  
 
It is further considered that the decision complies with Future Wales - the National 
Plan 2040, and the Council’s well-being objectives and the sustainable development 
principle in accordance with the requirements of the Well-being of Future 
Generations (Wales) Act 2015. 
 
RECOMMENDATION 
 
APROVAL, SUBJECT TO CONDITIONS.  
 

Time Limit Conditions 
 

1.  

The development shall begin no later than five years from the date of this 

decision. 
 
Reason: 
To comply with the requirements of Section 91 of the Town and Country 

Planning Act 1990. 
 

List of Approved Plans 

 
2. The development shall be carried out in accordance with the following 

approved plans and documents: 
HMO planning statement - 19/06/2023 

2334 - AL - (00)01D - Block and site plan 

2334 - AL - (01)03A - Roof Plan existing 

2334 - AL - (01)05A - Rear elevation existing 

2334 - AL - (01)01A - Ground floor existing 

2334 - AL - (01)02A - First floor existing 

2334 - AL - (01)06A - Site elevation existing 

2334 - AL - (2-)01C - Ground floor proposed 

2334 - AL - (2-)02B - First floor proposed 

2334 - AL - (4-)01B - Front elevation proposed 

2334 - AL - (4-)02B - Rear elevation proposed 

2334 - AL - (4-)03B - Side elevation proposed 

2334 - AL - (47)01B - Roof plan proposed 

2334 - AL - (01)04A - Front elevation existing 

 
Reason: 
In the interests of clarity. 
 
Action Conditions 

 

Tudalen28



 

 

3. Prior to the first beneficial occupation of the House of Multiple Occupancy 

hereby permitted, an artificial nesting site for birds shall be erected on the 

dwelling to one of the following specifications, and retained as such 

thereafter; 
Nest Box Specifications for House Sparrow Terrace: 
Wooden (or woodcrete) nest box with 3 sub-divisions to support 3 nesting 

pairs. To be placed under the eaves of building. 
Entrance holes: 32mm diameter 
Dimensions: H310 x W370 x D185mm 

or 
Swift Nest Box Specification: 
Wide box with small slit shaped entrance hole. Must be placed under or close 

to roof, at least 5m from the ground. 
Dimensions: H150 x W340 x D150mm 

 
Reason: 
In the interest of biodiversity, and to mitigate to loss of bird nesting/foraging 

habitats under the Habitats Regulations (amended 2012) and to accord with 

Policy SP15 of the adopted Neath Port Talbot Local Development Plan. 
 

4. Prior to the first beneficial occupation of the HMO hereby approved, the 

parking area shall be constructed in a hardwearing porous material, such as 

block paving or asphalt, or provision must be made to direct run-off water 
from the hard surface, to a permeable porous area or surface within the 

curtilage of the dwelling to a maximum gradient of 1 in 9, with no surface 

water allowed to flow out onto the public highway and permanently 

maintained as such use thereafter. 
 
Reason: 
In the in interest of highway and pedestrian safety and to ensure compliance 

with Policy TR2 of the Neath Port Talbot Local Development Plan. 
 

5. 5 Prior to first occupation of the HMO, the removal of the rear boundary wall 
and the provision of one off street parking space, within the curtilage of the 

property, accessed via the rear lane of Cwrt Sart is fully constructed. The 

parking space shall be located as detailed on the submitted plan drawing 

number 2334-AL(2-)01, the car parking space shall be dimensioned as 6 

metres x 2.6 metres and set back 6 metres from the opposite side of the 

lane, to ensure vehicles can manoeuvre with ease. The car parking space 

shall be retained for the use of the occupiers of the house of multiple 

occupation only. 
 
Reason: In the interest of highway safety and to ensure the development 
complies with Policy TR2 of the Neath Port Talbot Local Development Plan. 
 

6. The development shall not be occupied until facilities for the secure storage 

of bicycles and bins have been provided within the existing single storey 

lean-to at the rear of the property, and the facilities shall thereafter be 

retained at all times. 
 
Reason: 
In the interest of highway safety and to ensure the development complies 

Tudalen29



 

 

with Policy BE1 and TR2 of the Neath Port Talbot Local Development Plan. 
Regulatory Conditions 

 
7. Construction operations shall be limited to 08:00-18:00 Mon-Fri, 08:00-13:00 

Saturday, and no construction operations shall take place on Sunday and 

Public Holidays without the prior approval of the Local Planning Authority. 
 
Reason: 
To protect the amenity of the locality, especially for people living and/or 
working nearby, in accordance with Local Planning Policy. 
 

8. Notwithstanding the provisions of the Town and Country Planning (General 
Permitted Development) Order 1995 (as amended for Wales) (or any order 
revoking and re-enacting that Order with or without modification), there shall 
be no extension or external alteration to any building forming part of the 

development hereby permitted without the prior grant of planning permission 

in that behalf. 
 
Reason: 
In order to safeguard the amenities of the area by enabling the Local 
Planning Authority to consider whether planning permission should be 

granted for extensions, having regard to the particular layout and design of 
the development and need to protect the amenity of nearby properties, and to 

accord with Policies BE1 and SC1 of the Neath Port Talbot Local 
Development Plan. 
 

9. Notwithstanding the provisions of the Town and Country Planning (General 
Permitted Development) Order 1995 (as amended for Wales) (or any order 
revoking and re-enacting that Order with or without modification), no doors, 
windows or dormer windows (other than those expressly authorised by this 

permission) shall be constructed without the prior grant of planning 

permission in that behalf. 
 
Reason: 
In order to safeguard the amenities of the area by enabling the Local 
Planning Authority to consider whether planning permission should be 

granted for such additional doors or windows, having regard to the particular 
layout and design of the development and need to protect the amenity of 
nearby properties, and to accord with Policies BE1 and SC1 of the Neath 

Port Talbot Local Development Plan. 
 

10. Any gates provided across the rear access shall be of a type which open 

inward only and can be seen through, and shall be retained as such 

thereafter. 
 

Reason: 
In the in interest of highway and pedestrian safety and to ensure compliance 

with Policy TR2 of the Neath Port Talbot Local Development Plan. 
 

11. The House of Multiple Occupation (HMO) hereby approved shall be limited to 

a maximum of 6 people. 
 

Tudalen30



 

 

Reason: 
In the interest of the residential amenity of the potential future occupiers due 

to the size of the kitchen area, and to comply with Policy BE1 of the Neath 

Port Talbot Local Development Plan. 

Tudalen31



Mae’r dudalen hon yn fwriadol wag



SECTION B – MATTERS FOR INFORMATION 

APPEALS DETERMINED 

a) Planning Appeals 
 
Appeal Ref: A2023/0010 Planning Ref: P2022/0641 
 
PINS Ref: CAS-02409-M4Y0T9 
 
Appellant: Mr Jay Clark 
 

Proposal: Change of use of a domestic garage into a 
barbershop (A1 use class). Access for clients will 
be available via the back road access, on street 
parking and off street parking within residential 
curtilage. Clients will be invited to the shop by 
appointment only, no more than one/two clients 
waiting at one time. 

 

Site Address: 20 New Street Tonna Neath Neath Port Talbot 
SA11 3JH   

 
Appeal Method: Written Representations  
 
Decision Date: 15 August 2023 
 
Decision: Appeal Dismissed 
 
 Appeal Decision Letter 
 
__________________________________________________ 
 
Appeal Ref: A2023/0012 Planning Ref: P2023/0129 
 
PINS Ref: CAS-02758-R4T0W3 
 
Appellant: Mr Billy Doyle 
 

Proposal: Retention of parcel of land as garden curtilage in 
association with the property known as Afan 
Forest Cottage. 

 

Tudalen33

Eitem yr Agenda6



Site Address: Afan Forest Cottage Tai'r Ynys Fawr 
Pontrhydyfen Port Talbot Neath Port Talbot SA12 
9RU  

 
Appeal Method: Written Representations  
 
Decision Date: 22 August 2023 
 
Decision: Appeal Allowed with Conditions 
 
 Appeal Decision Letter 
 
__________________________________________________ 
 
Appeal Ref: A2023/0013 Planning Ref: P2022/0663 
 
PINS Ref: CAS-02517-V8M9K4 
 
Appellant: Mr Gareth Tomlinson 
 

Proposal: Change of use from social club to dwelling (C3 
use) and associated works 

 

Site Address: Former Constitutional Club 1-3 Office Place 
Glyncorrwg SA13 3DH    

 
Appeal Method: Written Representations  
 
Decision Date: 22 August 2023 
 
Decision: Appeal Dismissed 
 
 Appeal Decision Letter 
 
__________________________________________________ 
 
 
b) Enforcement Appeals 
 
Appeal Ref: A2023/0011 Planning Ref: E2021/0309 
 
PINS Ref: CAS-02436-V9F7X8 

Tudalen34



 
Applicant: Andrew Edward Tranter 
 

Alleged Breach: Appeal against Extension with balcony above 
and raised platform to rear of garden 

 

Site Address: Sycamores School Road Jersey Marine Neath 
Neath Port Talbot SA10 6JE  

 
Start Date: 6 June 2023  
 
Appeal Method: Written Representations  
 
Decision Date: 22 August 2023 
 
Decision: Appeal Allowed with Conditions 
 
 Appeal Decision Letter 
 
__________________________________________________ 
 
 
 

Tudalen35



Mae’r dudalen hon yn fwriadol wag



SECTION B – MATTERS FOR INFORMATION 

APPEALS RECEIVED 

a) Planning Appeals 
 
Appeal Ref: A2023/0018 Planning Ref: P2020/0689 
 
PINS Ref: CAS-02640-J4S9Z1 
 
Appellant: Miss Chloe Mclean 
 

Proposal: Retention of outbuilding and engineering works 
to form tired garden area together with retention 
and completion of associated boundary treatment 
and decked areas 

 

 

Site Address: 21 Crymlyn Gardens Skewen SA10 6EU     
 
Start Date: 23 August 2023  
 
Appeal Method: Written Representations  
__________________________________________________ 
 
 
b) Enforcement Appeals 
 
 
 

Tudalen37

Eitem yr Agenda7



Mae’r dudalen hon yn fwriadol wag


	Agenda
	3 Cofnodion y cyfarfod blaenorol
	Cofnodion
	Minutes Public Pack, 22/08/2023 Planning Committee
	Cofnodion


	5 Cais Rhif P2023/0461 - 65 Cwrt Sart
	6 Apeliadau y Penderfynwyd Arnynt - 11/08/2023 i 04/09/2023
	7 Apeliadau a Dderbyniwyd - 11/08/2023 i 04/09/2023

